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1                   -  -  -

2        MS. DOWD-BURTON:  Good morning, everyone

3    morning.

4               (Good morning.)

5        MS. DOWD-BURTON:  I want to welcome you

6    to the first day of school.  And you all

7    look like very excited and enthusiastic

8    students, so welcome to the City Council

9    Chambers.

10        My name is Angela Dowd-Burton.  I'm

11    Executive Director of the Office of Economic

12    Opportunity and Chair of the Economic

13    Opportunity Review Committee.  This is our

14    third quarter meeting.  And so, we thank you

15    all for coming out.  We know many of you are

16    here to testify and you are on the agenda.

17    If you are not on the agenda and would like

18    to testify, please provide your name to

19    LaShawnda Tompkins over at the table and

20    she'll be happy to register you.

21        The Economic Opportunity Review

22    Committee was established by City Council

23    Bill No. 120013 in March of 2012.  The

24    purpose of the committee is twofold.  First,
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1    to review the implementation and

2    effectiveness and enforcement of Chapter

3    17-1600 of the Philadelphia Code as it

4    relates to economic opportunity plans; and

5    to make recommendations to City Council

6    regarding the adoption of resolutions

7    calling for the debarrment of any

8    contractors and recipients of city financial

9    assistant that are found in violation of

10    this legislation.

11        The Economic Opportunity Review

12    Committee, or the EORC as we like to call

13    it, public hearing is a quarterly meeting to

14    capture the state of the marketplace from

15    the perspective of project owners,

16    developers, contractors, subcontractors,

17    union leaders, respective employees,

18    consultants and special interest groups.

19    And so, the business of this committee will

20    be transcribed and published in City Council

21    transcripts.  Those transcripts are posted

22    on the Office of Economic Opportunity

23    website under the governance tab.

24        So at this time, it's my pleasure to
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1    have my committee introduce itself.

2        MR. BRADLEY:  Good morning.  My name is

3    Steven Bradley.  I'm Chair of the

4    African-American Chamber of Commerce, also

5    president of Bradley and Bradley Insurance

6    Brokers here in Philadelphia.

7        MS. DOWD-BURTON:  Thank you, Steve.

8        MS. FIELDS:  Good morning.  My name is

9    Vanessa Fields.  I'm Vice President of

10    AFSCME District Council 47.

11        MS. DOWD-BURTON:  Thank you for being

12    here both.  And so, I would like to also

13    indicate that Varsovia Fernandez who also

14    serves on this committee is out today.  She

15    is actually enjoying the weather and their

16    annual fundraising golf outing.  So, I hope

17    she does well.  And our fifth member is

18    Sherman Harris who represents District

19    Council 33 who is absent today.

20        And so, since it all only requires two

21    members of this committee to represent a

22    quorum, we will be proceeding with our

23    meeting.  And for the record, members of the

24    Economic Opportunity Review Committee look



(215) 504-4622
Strehlow & Associates, Inc.

5

1    forward to working with members of City

2    Council, Mayor Nutter's administration, our

3    business community and citizens to

4    strengthen the impact of the economic

5    opportunity plans designed to foster the

6    inclusion of minority and women-owned

7    businesses as well as diverse workforces

8    that work on our projects.

9        So, our agenda today includes public

10    testimony.  I believe we have eight speakers

11    here today.  And again, as I mentioned, if

12    anyone arrives who would like to testify,

13    please see LaShawnda Tompkins if you are not

14    already on the agenda.  We ask everyone who

15    is interested in receiving notifications

16    from the Office of Economic Opportunity,

17    from the African-American Chamber of

18    Commerce or the Greater Philadelphia

19    Hispanic Chamber of Commerce to also

20    register with LaShawnda.  We do send out a

21    lot of broadcasts of events and information

22    that we think is relevant to the community.

23    And so, we're going to be sharing some of

24    the announcements with you today, but you
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1    can receive them on a regular basis between

2    our quarterly meetings if you register.

3        So with that said, we are going to move

4    into the public hearing portion of our

5    meeting.  We've given speakers between five

6    and eight minutes to speak.  And so, we're

7    going to ask that you stick to that time

8    frame.  There may be a few questions that

9    we'll ask you.  And so, we do have an hour,

10    about an hour and a half here.  We'll try to

11    keep the ball rolling, but all of you are

12    doing some great things that we'd love to

13    have the public learn more about.

14        With that being said, the first speaker

15    for today -- thank you very much.  The first

16    speaker for today is Bill Cromedy.  And

17    I'll -- you can step up to the table and

18    please introduce yourself.

19        MR. CROMEDY:  Good morning.  I am Bill

20    Cromedy, Owner and President of Advantage

21    Contracting in Philadelphia.  We specialize

22    in HVAC and duct work fabrication

23    installation on commercial aspects in large

24    buildings.
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1        MS. DOWD-BURTON:  So, Bill, why don't

2    you share with us a few of the projects that

3    you've worked on and talk to us a little bit

4    about the expansion that you've just

5    undertook.

6        MR. CROMEDY:  Some of the projects we've

7    not only worked on but successfully

8    completed have been the Comcast Tower, the

9    Philadelphia Convention Center, PA

10    Convention Center, Sugar House Casino.  And

11    we've done probably a myriad of projects

12    ranging anywhere from zero to a million

13    dollars.

14        MS. DOWD-BURTON:  So, what do you

15    attribute your success to?  Because -- how

16    long have you been in business, actually?

17        MR. CROMEDY:  This is my tenth year in

18    business.  And I might mention that I'm a

19    union contractor, which makes it a totally

20    different animal, also.  Ten years in

21    business.  And I would say my success comes

22    from perseverance.  Being in business is

23    tough in itself.  We all kind of acknowledge

24    that being a minority contractor in the
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1    union environment has been tough.  And I've

2    persevered under, I would say, some duress.

3        As far as the minority contracting

4    standards, I fell for -- fell in one of the

5    kind of obstacles that most do where you

6    kind of get in relationships that you don't

7    trust and end up being taken advantage of.

8    Now I took that and turned it around.  Took

9    those lessons, and here I am ten years

10    later.  As of the summer, I became the only

11    manufacturing-my-own-product minority

12    contractor here in the City of Philadelphia.

13        MS. DOWD-BURTON:  Okay.  So, you

14    manufacture what in particular?

15        MR. CROMEDY:  I manufacture my own duct

16    work.  And for those of you that don't know,

17    the duct work assembly is -- requires a lot

18    of up front investment.  I would say to the

19    tune of about $300,000 to buy the equipment.

20    And so, it's been a long road.  But that

21    investment and in the saving of the money

22    has put me on par with some of the other

23    major contractors here in the city.

24        MS. DOWD-BURTON:  And so, I imagine --
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1    and I'll just ask.  Steve, if you have any

2    questions?

3        MR. BRADLEY:  Sure.  What efforts are

4    you making to target young 25 and unders?

5    Do you have any special internships or

6    anything that's been successful?  I mean,

7    that's a big concern of us is trying to deal

8    with the youth unemployment.

9        MR. CROMEDY:  You know, I pride myself

10    on hiring probably about a 50 percent

11    minority workforce.  Obviously, being a

12    union contractor, that's difficult.  I find

13    that I have some sort of an advantage where

14    some of the men that I hire I know are

15    probably going to give a little bit more

16    from you because they have the chance to

17    rise.  Not just to come for two or three

18    months and hit that 35 or 40 percent target.

19    These men can run work.  They can make a

20    living wage for the year not just a month or

21    two.

22        In this union climate, you know, they're

23    training the men that I'm taking.  But it's

24    hard to take the steps to really find



(215) 504-4622
Strehlow & Associates, Inc.

10

1    qualified men and women even in my office

2    staff.  I have one of the only minority

3    women bookkeepers in this industry.  I know

4    that, and I impress that upon them.  I think

5    it takes more training on that side of it.

6        I can't tell you I know where it goes,

7    but I know that the technical stuff that's

8    needed for the estimating and some of the

9    sketching requirements, I can't find them.

10    I wish I could.  You know, I'm not afraid of

11    teaching someone else the business and

12    letting them, you know -- at the end, we're

13    probably teaching our competition.  But, you

14    know, being what I've been through, you

15    know, I'm making a difference.  And that's

16    part of me getting up every day.  It's not

17    just about the money.

18        MR. BRADLEY:  Congratulations on your

19    efforts.

20        MR. CROMEDY:  Thank you, sir.

21        MS. DOWD-BURTON:  Vanessa, questions?

22        MS. FIELDS:  Yeah.  Congratulations on

23    your effort.  What you're saying is really

24    great.
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1        MR. CROMEDY:  Thank you.

2        MS. FIELDS:  My question as a union

3    leader, though, is you're saying there are

4    constraints because you are a union

5    contractor.  What are those constraints?

6        MR. CROMEDY:  Well, you know, I'm not

7    sure how much time you have.

8        The union constraints, first it's the

9    money.  And I've talked about this in depth

10    with some other people.  That we as union

11    contractors first have to get bonding.

12    Bonding is always an issue for minority

13    contractors as far as net worth is

14    concerned.  The unions want their money.  If

15    you don't have the bond and to the tune of

16    the bond has to be about $200,000 or so they

17    want paid weekly.  If you have the bond,

18    they want paid monthly.

19        Now, somebody managing five to six

20    different men per week, what you have to pay

21    you're going to look at 20, 30,000 dollars

22    per week.  And if you're going to

23    participate on some of these bigger

24    projects, you're looking to the tune of
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1    about, you know, 80,000 a month.  That's

2    personally what I pay.  Now they want their

3    money irregardless or they're going to pull

4    your men.

5        Now I'm lucky enough and savvy enough

6    that I've been able to get the bonding.  Now

7    if I can take that and turn it to when we

8    are performing on these projects, the

9    payment, if it's not a city project, the

10    payment in these private aspects, that's a

11    lot of the work going on in the city right

12    now with the hospitals and the -- and some

13    of the colleges, you're looking at getting

14    paid probably anywhere from 90 to 120 days.

15        Now if you take that math, it doesn't

16    add up.  We are putting out $80,000 a month

17    for the union benefits and the payroll and

18    all the other things that you need to make

19    your organization run and then also waiting

20    120 days for the first payment.  Any profit

21    that you might have if you have a credit

22    line is being eaten up by the interest

23    you're paying on that credit line.  So, it's

24    a flawed system.  Maybe not inside the --
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1    the city government and the city projects,

2    but definitely on a majority of the work

3    that's going on right now in the city is

4    driven by the universities and the

5    hospitals.  The payment constraints are

6    very, very tough to operate with.

7        Now as I said before, you know, I've

8    been pretty savvy.  I have a great line of

9    credit, a great banking relationship.  I

10    have a great bonding relationship.  But

11    somebody just starting out or even just in

12    business for a couple years is not going to

13    be able to survive that.  It's asking way

14    too much.

15        MS. FIELDS:  Thank you.

16        MR. CROMEDY:  You're welcome.

17        MS. DOWD-BURTON:  Excellent.  Any other

18    questions?

19        MR. BRADLEY:  No, thank you.

20        MS. DOWD-BURTON:  Okay.  Bill, any

21    closing comments or thoughts?  I think you,

22    number one, had a great video.

23        MR. CROMEDY:  Thank you.

24        MS. DOWD-BURTON:  That speaks to your
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1    fabrication facility.

2        MR. CROMEDY:  Thank you.

3        MS. DOWD-BURTON:  If you want to have a

4    few closing remarks and wrap up with that,

5    that would be fine.

6        MR. CROMEDY:  I just want to say, I

7    thank you for what you're doing.  Somebody

8    being in my position where I didn't start

9    out where I was, I am very glad to see that

10    there is an eye on what's going on and you

11    guys want to, on your side of it, you are

12    trying to understand what we do.  And that's

13    the first step.  And I appreciate you taking

14    the time to look at that.

15        MS. DOWD-BURTON:  Absolutely.  And thank

16    you for being here.  We know how busy your

17    schedule is.

18        MR. CROMEDY:  Thank you.

19        MS. DOWD-BURTON:  Okay.  Next we have up

20    Mr. Chet Riddick.

21        MR. RIDDICK:  Good morning.

22        MS. DOWD-BURTON:  Good morning.

23    Introduce yourself and your title.

24        MR. RIDDICK:  Certainly.  I am -- I am
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1    Chet Riddick.  I am the President and CEO of

2    Alpha Office Supplies.  Actually, we have a

3    dba as Alpha Enterprise Group.  Our business

4    has been -- was founded by Mr. James L.

5    Brown in 1985.  And I took over as President

6    and CEO in 2000.  Our business is -- primary

7    business is office supply.  We provide

8    nationwide office supply services throughout

9    the nation as well as throughout the City of

10    Philadelphia.  Hopefully, folks have seen

11    our trucks that says Alpha on the side of

12    those trucks.

13        We're also in the commercial furniture

14    and flooring business, energy management and

15    also document management solutions.  That's

16    our business.

17        MS. DOWD-BURTON:  Okay.  So, you started

18    out in office supplies and you've sort of

19    emerged into a number of different markets.

20    Can you talk about the diversity of your

21    portfolio now and why you've selected these

22    various areas.  For example, the energy and

23    ergonomic furniture, et cetera, that kind of

24    thing.
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1        MR. RIDDICK:  Well, certainly.  When

2    you're in business, you always have to take

3    a look at your margins.  You always have to

4    study where the industry is going and what

5    direction your company is actually going to

6    go in.  So as Alpha grew over the years from

7    1985, it dap -- it started to get involved

8    into commercial furniture, started to get

9    involved into commercial flooring.  And it

10    kind of dabbed at it quite a bit.  It's

11    still -- its main core competency within the

12    company is still 62 percent of our business

13    is still office supply.  But as the years

14    went on, we did more and more business in

15    the flooring business, more and more

16    business in the furniture business.  And in

17    the latter part of 1995 going into '98, we

18    got involved in some energy management

19    opportunities.  And we worked through

20    partnerships with other firms that provided

21    those particular facilities for us.

22        One of the things that's important, you

23    know, in our business is that we had an

24    opportunity to -- to invest in some of the
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1    newer core competencies that we got involved

2    in.  So during the course of years 2000

3    moving forward, we -- we tucked away a

4    little money and we invested in different

5    types of business opportunities to see what

6    would stick, see what would work on the

7    wall.

8        MS. DOWD-BURTON:  So, I guess this is --

9    you're the second business owner to testify.

10    And both of you are talking about how you've

11    invested in your business which is a

12    healthy, I think, sort of competency of

13    business owners.  They need to be plowing

14    their dollars back into expanding their

15    businesses and putting people to work.

16        So, tell us how large your company is.

17    Tell us about your move to Parkside and why

18    there and what people would see if they went

19    there.

20        MR. RIDDICK:  Well, certainly.  The

21    first in terms of business revenue size, we

22    average roughly anywhere between 36 and

23    38 million dollars annually.  We also are a

24    black enterprise company, on their top 100
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1    list.  We are represented now as number 78

2    on that specific list.  But more importantly

3    when we talk about how we've changed our

4    core competency, those are really driven by

5    what the market was doing in our business.

6        When we took a look at our margins and

7    we watched our margins, we saw our margins

8    were changing.  You know, office supply used

9    to be a very, very good business.  But when

10    you take a look at our business and you take

11    a look at Staples and you take a look at

12    Office Depot, Staples is a $23 billion

13    company in our business.  And you take a

14    look at Office Depot that just merged with

15    Office Max, that's $19 billion business.  It

16    is all about buying power.

17        So as we look -- as my management team,

18    we got together and -- about two and a half

19    years ago, and we looked at how do we stay

20    in business for the next five years.  How do

21    we stay in business or even for the next ten

22    years.  Is the market that we're in today,

23    is it still going to be there for us in the

24    next five years.  So, we put together a
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1    plan.  And part of that plan, Angela, if you

2    remember, the Honorable Mayor Michael

3    Nutter -- we went to him and we said to the

4    Mayor, Mayor, we're looking at changing our

5    location of where we are.  We want to

6    upgrade what we do and we want to create

7    something that no other business has done in

8    the City of Philadelphia.

9        So, the Mayor assembled a team and

10    actually, Angela, you were on that team

11    along with PIDC along with the finance

12    director here in the City of Philadelphia.

13    And a group of folks all got together in our

14    office and we sat down and we made a plan.

15    We made a plan of looking at the properties

16    here in the City of Philadelphia to kind of

17    keep us and retain us in Philadelphia.  And

18    we found a location at 4950 Parkside Avenue.

19    We've just moved into that operation

20    September 2.  We just had a major press

21    release that introduced what we call the

22    "office of the future."

23        Now, what is that office of the future

24    about?  It is about bringing together a
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1    variety of different types of manufacturers

2    all in one location, all under one roof and

3    having the ability to market their services

4    for those manufacturers that do not have a

5    showroom here in the City of Philadelphia.

6    That was our strategy that we went forward

7    with.

8        We also looked at energy.  We understood

9    about a year and a half ago where the Mayor

10    created an executive order that says that

11    all major businesses in the City of

12    Philadelphia spending over $25,000 needed to

13    report in their database what they're energy

14    use was.  So, we looked at that and we

15    investigated that.  And we said to

16    ourselves, energy is the way to go in our

17    business.

18        So when we built the office of the

19    future, we built in all of those

20    technologies.  How to reduce energy.  We

21    have a process called daylight harvesting

22    where we use part of the sunlight that comes

23    into the room to provide lighting in the

24    room to reduce the cost of electricity to
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1    light the room.

2        In addition to that, we have smart

3    technology in place.  So, we have a lot of

4    different things that we are trying to put

5    in place that would offer new customers an

6    opportunity to come and visit us and buy

7    from us.

8        MS. DOWD-BURTON:  Thank you.  Steve,

9    questions?

10        MR. BRADLEY:  I just wanted to

11    congratulate you and Alpha success in its

12    new venture 490 Parkside.

13        Again, my focus is on youth employment.

14    Can you tell us some initiatives that you

15    have focused over the years on trying to

16    target youth employment.

17        MR. RIDDICK:  Well, a part of the mantra

18    of Alpha has always been hiring from within

19    the community.  All our folks who work with

20    for us live within the community.  And in

21    fact, we are a hub-zone company.  67 percent

22    of our folks live somewhere within the

23    community that -- where we do business.

24        We have programs, intern programs, where
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1    we have normally at least three to five

2    interns that are always working with us

3    during the course of the year.  It has been

4    part of the founders' mantra to always reach

5    back to the community and provide jobs for

6    those that sometimes can't get mainstream

7    jobs downtown Philadelphia.  And that's been

8    what this company has really been all about.

9        MS. DOWD-BURTON:  Thank you.  Vanessa?

10        MR. BRADLEY:  Again, congratulations on

11    an excellent job you're doing.

12        MR. RIDDICK:  Thank you.

13        MS. DOWD-BURTON:  Thanks, Steve.

14        MS. FIELDS:  Yeah, again, as a labor

15    leader, I always go to the labor movement.

16    I really have two questions.

17        One is, are your workers unionized?

18        MR. RIDDICK:  No, they're not.

19        MS. FIELDS:  Is there a reason why

20    they're not?

21        MR. RIDDICK:  They haven't asked to be

22    unionized.  One of the things we do and we

23    do well is that we take care of our people.

24    We provide pick-and-choose medical benefits
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1    for our employees.  We believe that the most

2    important part of our company is the

3    retention of our people.  We have an average

4    of eight and a half to nine years of

5    retention within our company.

6        MS. FIELDS:  Okay.  Course I wouldn't

7    like that.

8        My second question is this.  It says on

9    here the bottom regarding the principles of

10    the founder:  Building a socially

11    responsible company which is committed to

12    the brand of first in service with a

13    personal touch.

14        My main part is "building a socially

15    responsible company."  So, how would you say

16    that you're continuing that legacy of the

17    founder?

18        MR. RIDDICK:  We're continuing the

19    legacy of the founder by absolutely

20    continuing to hire within the community.

21    Hire and train in house.  We -- we believe

22    it is in -- it is very, very important that

23    you give folks an opportunity.  Many times

24    African-Americans -- and we hire a
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1    tremendous amount of African-American, don't

2    get an opportunity to be able to work in

3    what I would call mainstream-type business.

4    And what our business does in its

5    mainstream-type business, they don't get the

6    opportunity to learn the skill sets of what

7    you need to do to be in mainstream business.

8        So, many of the folks that come to us,

9    they have no skill sets.  They are products

10    of the Philadelphia school system.  We want

11    to see the school system do better in the

12    City of Philadelphia.  That's what I want to

13    say to you because we hire folks that are

14    actually directly sometimes right out of the

15    Philadelphia school systems.  We see a

16    lacking of a number things, folks being able

17    to work with spreadsheets and different

18    things like that within our business.

19        And so, we train inhouse.  We train

20    inhouse for those skill sets to be able to

21    help those folks learn some of the skills so

22    if they decide to leave us, they have --

23    they have skill sets that they can use at

24    other organizations.
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1        MS. FIELDS:  Thank you.

2        MR. RIDDICK:  You're welcome.

3        MS. DOWD-BURTON:  Thank you very much,

4    Mr. Riddick.  Continued success to you and

5    also to Bill.  Thank you both.

6        And I want to acknowledge the work of

7    the Commerce Department.

8        MR. RIDDICK:  Thank you.

9        MS. DOWD-BURTON:  Thank you.  In

10    supporting your business, it is the kind of

11    service that the Commerce Department is

12    committed to for businesses around the --

13    around the region.

14        Now I'd like to have Marla Hamilton come

15    up.  Marla is one of the wonderful committed

16    service providers to small businesses.  So,

17    I will have you introduce yourself, please.

18        MS. HAMILTON:  Good morning.  I'm Marla

19    Hamilton, Vice President at the Philadelphia

20    Industrial Development Corporation, PIDC.

21    Consider it the official economic

22    development agency for the City of

23    Philadelphia.  Thank you for having me

24    today.
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1        MS. DOWD-BURTON:  You're welcome.

2        Marla, can you tell us about the kinds

3    of services you provide to businesses in

4    general and, in particular, the Emerging

5    Loan Program?  I think it sort of addresses

6    some of the cash flow issues that Bill

7    Cromedy spoke of a little bit earlier for

8    those companies that may be less tenured in

9    terms of their -- their experiences in the

10    market.

11        MS. HAMILTON:  Since 1958, PIDC has been

12    providing financial assistance and real

13    estate services to small businesses here in

14    Philadelphia through low interest

15    subordinate loans and real estate

16    opportunities to buy land in our industrial

17    parks that are located throughout

18    Philadelphia.

19        About seven years ago looking at the

20    small business landscape, we knew that we

21    needed to develop additional financing

22    products to address the challenges of

23    smaller businesses.  And so, with that we

24    initially partnered with the
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1    African-American Chamber of Commerce and

2    subsequently developed an independent

3    financing product that had been called the

4    Emerging Business Loan Program.  Which

5    basically takes an executed contract, uses

6    it as collateral for a loan, and then the

7    line of credit enables the small business

8    owner to not have to wait to receive

9    payment, but we will fund up to 90 percent

10    of an invoice in order to provide access to

11    capital that is so important to businesses.

12        We know companies are well able to

13    identify contracts, but the ability to wait

14    for payment continues to be a challenge, the

15    ability to get bonding continues to be a

16    challenge.  And so, we have found that the

17    line of credit provides a company the access

18    to capital to meet the payroll, to pay their

19    suppliers.  It also has become an

20    enhancement for insurers to provide bonding.

21    And so, for a company that has a growth

22    strategy, access to capital is critical to

23    the company.  And PIDC has been able to meet

24    that need.
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1        MS. DOWD-BURTON:  So, Steve, questions?

2        MR. BRADLEY:  No.

3        MS. DOWD-BURTON:  Vanessa?

4        MS. FIELDS:  Yeah.  The other gentleman,

5    the first gentleman spoke about bonding

6    constraints and issues.  So specifically,

7    what are you doing to address those issues

8    of bonding?  I know you said you give

9    X-amount of money.  Are there any other

10    things, initiatives that you are doing to

11    address that?  Seems to be a real prevalent

12    problem with minority businesses.

13        MS. HAMILTON:  Well, the line of

14    credit -- access to capital is, I mean, the

15    contractors can speak for themselves.  But

16    what we understand in -- when we talk to the

17    insurers is that access to capital is

18    significant.  Because without the ability to

19    have cash when you're performing on a job,

20    the idea that you -- you run short and are

21    unable to continue to perform or

22    satisfactorily perform your portion is cause

23    for concern with an owner of a project, with

24    a general contractor and certainly with the
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1    subcontractor themselves.

2        And so, having that access to capital is

3    one of the requirements with the bonding

4    companies in consideration of extending

5    bonding and increasing a bonding line.

6        MS. FIELDS:  Thank you.

7        MR. BRADLEY:  Marla, I have a question

8    regarding the Goldman Sachs loan program.

9    How is the results of that program with

10    Goldman Sachs with PIDC?  Have people been

11    taking advantage of it?

12        MS. HAMILTON:  They have.  It's been one

13    of the great products that PIDC offers.  For

14    anyone familiar with PIDC, historically our

15    subordinate financing has been limited to

16    asset-based financing.  What we've been able

17    to do with Goldman Sachs is use it for

18    working capital, which we have never been

19    able to do with the public dollars.

20        The Goldman Sachs fund is private

21    dollars.  Two and a half years ago, PIDC

22    received a certification from the US

23    Department of Treasury as a community

24    development financial institution which now
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1    allows us to borrow money from private

2    sources.  And those private sources have

3    less restraints on them.  And so working

4    capital needs, refinancing, those kind of

5    things that we historically have not been

6    able to do with the public dollars, we are

7    able to do.  So, we are seeing companies

8    come in with working capital needs for

9    operations, for refinancing.

10        One of the great things about PIDC is we

11    typically have low interest financing.  And

12    so, for a contractor, for example, even on

13    our contracts line of credit, our Emerging

14    Business Loan Program, a contractor can

15    access our line at an interest rate far

16    below what is a typical market rate.  We are

17    at 2.75 percent.  So when you build in

18    2.75 percent interest into your bids versus

19    5 percent interest rate into your bids, just

20    that spread alone provides you with extra

21    cash to be able to manage your operations

22    better.

23        MS. DOWD-BURTON:  Great.  Any other

24    questions?  So --
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1        MS. FIELDS:  Yeah.  You said there's

2    been an increase because of this use of

3    Goldman Sachs.  What's the percentage?

4    What's the increase, the percentage amount?

5    10 percent more than previously?  Do you

6    have that data?

7        MS. HAMILTON:  We borrowed $10 million

8    from Goldman Sachs, for example.  And

9    probably about half of that -- and we

10    launched in January of 2013.  So about half

11    of that we've been able to lend already.  We

12    have about a five-year period in order to

13    lend all of those dollars.  And we've done

14    about half.

15        MS. FIELDS:  Thank you.

16        MS. DOWD-BURTON:  So, Marla, you've been

17    in the market you were talking about seven

18    years now.  That's in this particular

19    market, but you've been an advocate for

20    small businesses for, let's just say, a long

21    time.

22        MS. HAMILTON:  I usually say when I had

23    long brown hair.

24        MS. DOWD-BURTON:  Yes.  Okay.  So, can
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1    you talk to us a little bit about any trends

2    that you're seeing in the market?  Are we --

3    are we improving opportunities for

4    minorities and women?  Are they asking for

5    different kinds of support to demonstrate

6    that they -- their business acumen is

7    increasing?

8        MS. HAMILTON:  I have been in this

9    business for a long time.  And

10    unfortunately, a lot of the challenges,

11    historical challenges remain contemporary

12    challenges which is why PIDC offers

13    opportunity to overcome those challenges.

14    Historically, the challenge has been getting

15    contracts.

16        We are able to get contracts.  But

17    access to capital continues to be a problem.

18    And so, we applaud the companies that are

19    able to get contracts.  We applaud the

20    organizations that have initiatives of

21    participation.  But access to capital to be

22    successful in performing on those contracts

23    continues to be a challenge.

24        And so, PIDC is absolutely committed to
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1    making sure we are providing a tangible

2    growth strategy for those businesses to be

3    able to perform.  Money is -- is critical.

4    Cash is king.  Being able to have a loan at

5    2.75 percent versus a loan at 10 percent has

6    a significant impact on your cash flow.  And

7    so, we are committed to keeping a low

8    interest rate for small businesses to be

9    able to provide access to capital.

10        So they cannot -- a lot of companies

11    now, and I've worked with private sector

12    companies.  Certainly, I've worked with

13    public sector.  A part of the bidding

14    requirement is your demonstration not only

15    that you can perform but that you have

16    access to capital.  And so, being able to

17    submit a bid and document that you do have a

18    line of credit is significant in being able

19    to get awards these days.

20        MS. DOWD-BURTON:  Okay.  Thank you.

21        Any other questions for Marla?

22        MR. BRADLEY:  No.

23        MS. DOWD-BURTON:  Marla, I just wanted

24    to, number one, thank you for coming; but
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1    number two, thank you for showing up at our

2    Doing Business With The City programs every

3    month.

4        MS. HAMILTON:  Our pleasure.

5        MS. DOWD-BURTON:  And sharing your

6    expertise with all of the companies who are

7    interested in doing business not only with

8    the city but within the nonprofit and

9    private sector in this region, so thank you.

10        MS. HAMILTON:  Thank you.  And I just

11    want to applaud the committed to continuing

12    the effort to acknowledge that there are

13    still challenges with small businesses in

14    making sure there is a level playing field.

15        MS. DOWD-BURTON:  Absolutely.  Thanks.

16        So, we're now going to ask Shalimar

17    Thomas to come up.  One of the things that

18    we often talk about in the marketplace is

19    access to information as well as access to

20    opportunity and resources.  And so, we're

21    going to ask Shalimar, number one, to

22    introduce yourself.  And then talk to us a

23    little bit about the Minority Enterprise

24    Development Week that's coming up.
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1        MS. THOMAS:  Good morning.  My name is

2    Shalimar Thomas.  I'm the Executive Director

3    at the African-American Chamber of Commerce

4    of Pennsylvania, New Jersey and Delaware.

5    Thank you for having me.

6        So, I'm excited.  Actually, I have

7    copies as well for the panel about the 30th

8    Anniversary of Minority Enterprise

9    Development also known as MED Week.  This

10    year we have more than 20 partners whose

11    working to provide workshops throughout the

12    week.

13        In addition, we are super excited -- is

14    exciting that the Ethnic Chambers are

15    actually charing or co-charing the MED Week

16    celebration this year.  So, we have the

17    African-American Chamber, the Hispanic

18    Chamber and the Asian Chamber who, on

19    Wednesday, October 1, will take that entire

20    day and will be at the Barnes Foundation

21    hosting events that's going to support

22    Minority Enterprise Development in

23    Philadelphia.

24        MS. DOWD-BURTON:  So, there are a number
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1    of events throughout the week, extraordinary

2    list of supporters and participants.  You've

3    got various venues from?

4        MS. THOMAS:  Yes.  We have about 20

5    partners and about 20 events that will take

6    place throughout the week.  So our -- on

7    Wednesday, October 1 we'll be at the Barnes

8    Foundation who has served as a host.  We

9    also have -- doing business with the Federal

10    Reserve who will be hosting.  We have

11    universities who are hosting doing business

12    with the universities, doing business with

13    nonprofit, so various workshops that are

14    taking place throughout the week.  That

15    kicks off actually here in City Hall with

16    MED Week Honors and Awards Program.

17        MS. DOWD-BURTON:  Okay.  So MED Week

18    starts on September 28.  That's a Sunday.

19    Actually, on Monday is the Honors and Awards

20    Reception starting at eight o'clock in the

21    Mayor's Reception Room.  There will be

22    presentations and panel by the 10,000 Small

23    Business Scholars.  We'll be happy to have

24    them in addition to awards given by the
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1    African-American, the Asian-American and the

2    Greater Philadelphia Hispanic Chambers of

3    Commerce.

4        MS. THOMAS:  Absolutely.

5        MS. DOWD-BURTON:  And the Minority

6    Business Development Agency out of the

7    Enterprise Center.

8        MS. THOMAS:  Absolutely.

9        MS. DOWD-BURTON:  Awards are going to be

10    given.  So, people should go to the website?

11        MS. THOMAS:  People -- any of our

12    partners actually at this time should be

13    promoting the event on their individual

14    websites.  So if you go on the Chambers

15    website, www.aachamber.org you will see

16    right on our home page the MED Week banner.

17    And every organization and chairs that is

18    working with us this week will have the

19    exact same banner and should also have this

20    program.

21        And what's really great is that when

22    people visit, they can click on the Register

23    Here button and register.  All workshops

24    throughout the week are free, but you do
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1    have to register because there is a cap on a

2    lot of the workshops.  So, you can click

3    Register Here and register for whatever

4    workshop that you want to attend during that

5    week.

6        MS. DOWD-BURTON:  Okay.  So, tell us

7    about the council people, City Council

8    members who are participating in MED Week.

9        MS. THOMAS:  Absolutely.  So, we

10    actually had Councilwoman Blondell Reynolds

11    Brown who came out to the press party that

12    we had last Thursday.  And we also have

13    support from Councilman Curtis Jones'

14    office, both who I know have been involved

15    with MED Week from the start.  So, it's

16    exciting to have their involvement and their

17    engagement this year.

18        What's really exciting also is that at

19    the end of October 2, we'll be honoring all

20    individuals who have had a role in starting

21    MED Week 30 years ago, who had the vision so

22    that we can continue it today.

23        MS. DOWD-BURTON:  Okay.  And we're not

24    going to leave out Councilman Oh, are we?
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1        MS. THOMAS:  Oh, I'm sorry, yes.

2    Councilman Oh.

3        MR. BRADLEY:  So, Shalimar, can you tell

4    us what efforts are being done to bring the

5    millenial involved in MED Week and get them

6    involved in this movement.  I mean, it's a

7    very ambitious schedule you have here.  What

8    can we do to really motivate the millenials

9    to be part of MED Week to learn about the

10    legacy and the history?

11        MS. THOMAS:  There actually is a young

12    professional networking event that's going

13    to take place on Tuesday, I believe.  The

14    reason it's not on the program is that the

15    information was submitted after the program

16    was developed.

17        MR. BRADLEY:  Okay.

18        MS. THOMAS:  I think in reaching out

19    next year, not only did we start the process

20    earlier this year, but when we start next

21    year just to help partners and anyone who

22    want to host an event or workshop during MED

23    Week, just to make sure they get the

24    information in time because there is a
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1    printing deadline.  We want to make sure we

2    have time to promote at least six to eight

3    weeks just to promote the events that are

4    taking place.

5        This year what we did was there was a

6    process put in place for anyone who wanted

7    to submit a workshop idea.  So, for about a

8    month we promoted a form that you can

9    complete and you just had to have it back to

10    us by August 31.  That -- again, that's so

11    that we can make sure that all the

12    information was on the program and that it's

13    on the website and that we can promote and

14    that we can kind of also look at it to make

15    sure it fits the MED Week brand.

16        One thing we didn't want to do this year

17    was to have various events popping up under

18    the MED Week brand that could potentially

19    hurt what we're looking to set out and do.

20    And we want to have more sponsors, want to

21    build relationships next year.  So, we want

22    to make sure that this year's MED Week, the

23    30th celebration, really embodies Minority

24    Enterprise Development and that there's no
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1    events that kind of stray away from that and

2    hurt that brand.  So, we had this process in

3    place so we can vet workshops and make sure

4    that they fit the mission and the vision of

5    MED Week.

6        And then organizers just had to have it

7    in by August 31.  Unfortunately, there were

8    a few.  And the young professionals event

9    did come after that day, so we weren't able

10    to actually include it in the program.  But

11    there is an event taking place at Community

12    College on Tuesday, I believe.

13        MS. DOWD-BURTON:  Okay.  I guess one --

14    two highlights I'd like to add.  A lot of

15    people are very much interested in the

16    expansion at the Airport.  The Airport is

17    hosting an event that Friday, October 3 at

18    the Marriott.  It's going to be, like, three

19    quarters of the day.

20        MS. THOMAS:  Right.

21        MS. DOWD-BURTON:  We want to drive

22    people to the website to get the details on

23    that.  The Airport is really very much

24    working to provide opportunities for
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1    minorities and women on that day.

2        MS. THOMAS:  Absolutely.  Especially as

3    it relates to the marketplace, the

4    Philadelphia marketplace and just providing

5    information on how more businesses can get

6    involved and do business down at the

7    Philadelphia International Airport and start

8    a shop in the Airport even if it's a cart.

9    Just information to help minority businesses

10    understand that process.  So, that's

11    actually all day from 8:00 a.m. to 3:00 p.m.

12    That whole Friday is dedicated to that

13    event.

14        MS. DOWD-BURTON:  Thank you.  And we

15    have Mayor Nutter and Mayor Goode

16    participating.

17        One final thing, there is an event the

18    week before MED Week.  Do you want to spend

19    just 30 seconds talking about that.

20        MS. THOMAS:  Yeah.  So, I believe that

21    is -- you're talking about Earl Harvey's

22    event that's taking place at the Enterprise

23    Center where he is going to -- this is like

24    a pre-MED Week prep event.  What he's going
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1    to do and what we find is that a lot of

2    people come to these events and they don't

3    have strong networking skills.  In order to

4    prepare the audience to understand who is

5    presenting at MED Week, what type of events

6    are taking place but also to learn the basic

7    and very needed skills on networking and to

8    help them understand that he's going to host

9    this event at the Enterprise Center.

10        MS. DOWD-BURTON:  Thank you.  And then,

11    I guess, question?

12        MS. FIELDS:  Yeah.  Two questions.

13        First, exactly what is your purpose?  I

14    mean, what are you trying to get out of

15    this?  What's your ultimate goal in

16    implementing this?

17        MS. THOMAS:  That's an excellent

18    question.  What we hope to get from MED Week

19    is to move the needle and Minority

20    Enterprise Development.  What we want to do

21    is to use these workshops as an opportunity

22    for more businesses to become familiar not

23    just with the partners on here but the

24    resources that are available in Philadelphia
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1    that they can help them grow, especially

2    your local -- your Chamber of Commerce, your

3    Ethnic Chamber of Commerce.

4        What I have learned in being the

5    Executive Director of the African-American

6    Chamber of Commerce is that many of our

7    African-American businesses don't even know

8    the role of a Chamber of Commerce.  This is

9    a -- serves as a technical assistance type

10    of week of development, but also an

11    awareness to help more of our businesses

12    understand what's out here that can help

13    them grow and develop so we can see more

14    minority, successful minority businesses in

15    Philadelphia.

16        MS. FIELDS:  And again, as a labor

17    leader, I notice that we are missing from

18    here.

19        MS. THOMAS:  I noticed that, too.

20        MS. FIELDS:  So, what are you doing to

21    address that, I guess, next year?

22        MS. THOMAS:  I knew that question was

23    coming when I'm sitting back here.  I looked

24    and I said, we don't have any unions on
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1    here.

2        MS. FIELDS:  Yes.

3        MS. THOMAS:  Next year is to definitely

4    reach out to various unions to get them

5    involved.  Because our goal is not to limit

6    this partner list at all.  We definitely

7    want to see it continue to grow and to see

8    more partners get involved and to support

9    our efforts with Minority Enterprise

10    Development.

11        MS. FIELDS:  Especially when you think

12    in terms of the buildings trades.

13        MS. THOMAS:  Absolutely.

14        MS. FIELDS:  It's a major constraint in

15    terms of getting workers who are able to

16    actually do the work.  It would seem like we

17    really should have been an integral part

18    this year, but I'll let y'all pass this

19    time.

20        MS. THOMAS:  Oh, thank you.  Appreciate

21    that.

22        MS. DOWD-BURTON:  Thank you, Vanessa,

23    for calling us to task on that.  That's a

24    very important point.
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1        Just wrapping up, we'll also acknowledge

2    City Council who will be presenting a

3    resolution on September 28 in honor of the

4    30th Anniversary of MED Week.  That will be

5    at ten o'clock here in City Council

6    Chambers.

7        MS. THOMAS:  29th.

8        MS. DOWD-BURTON:  Sorry?

9        MS. THOMAS:  29th.

10        MS. DOWD-BURTON:  Thursday,

11    September 29.  Okay.  And then, we also

12    wanted to highlight the fact that University

13    of Penn, Drexel and Temple along with the

14    College Collegiate Group will be

15    participating in MED Week.

16        MS. THOMAS:  And doing business with the

17    universities.

18        MS. DOWD-BURTON:  So, really how do you

19    do business in the city not just in the

20    public sector or the private.  It's all

21    sectors of -- of this region.  So, thank you

22    very much.

23        MS. THOMAS:  Thank you.

24        MS. DOWD-BURTON:  Okay.  So now we're
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1    going to switch gears.  And we're going to

2    talk a little bit about workforce, Vanessa.

3    You're welcome.  And so, I'd like to have

4    Meg Shope Koppel join us.

5        Thank you for being here, Meg.  If you'd

6    introduce yourself, please.

7        MS. KOPPEL:  Yes, good morning.

8        MS. DOWD-BURTON:  Morning.

9        MS. KOPPEL:  I'm Meg Shope Koppel,

10    Senior Vice President of Research Policy and

11    Innovation at Philadelphia Works.  And I

12    want to thank the committee for inviting me

13    here on behalf of Philadelphia Works and

14    Mark Edwards, our President and CEO.

15        Philadelphia Works is the public

16    workforce investment board in Philadelphia.

17    We have a Mayor-appointed board who finished

18    a strategic plan in March 2013 with five

19    objectives:  Coordinate Philadelphia's

20    workforce and economic development systems,

21    serve smaller employers better, implement

22    the "no wrong door" approach to workforce,

23    adopt common employer driven standards for

24    education and training, and target the
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1    hardest to serve.  Each of these strategies

2    is under way at this time.

3        The Mayor appointed two union

4    representatives to our board.  As you may

5    know, Patrick Eiding, President of the

6    Philadelphia Council AFL-CIO, and Ryan

7    Boyer, Business Manager of the Laborer's

8    District Council.  Mr. Eiding also has the

9    distinction to serve on the National

10    Workforce Investment Board, the first union

11    representative ever to do so.

12        Both he and Mr. Boyer advocate

13    nondiscrimination and nontraditional workers

14    in the trade unions.  Our full board is

15    committed to making opportunities available

16    to all residents of Philadelphia.

17        For example, the board actively promoted

18    Block the Box Legislation to reduce

19    discrimination against persons with past

20    criminal convictions.  Likewise, we

21    regularly test the use of our funding in

22    training and other opportunities to be

23    certain that we are not targeting specific

24    occupations or industries that would leave
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1    certain groups outside and create de facto

2    discrimination.

3        You can see all our statistics and our

4    strategic plan on our website.  They are

5    available for public review and we welcome

6    your comments.

7        Trade unions have many of their own

8    training programs.  Many quite excellent.

9    The unions typically inform us if they have

10    openings coming up in apprenticeships.  And

11    we actively send people from the PA Career

12    Link System as well as advertise these with

13    the School District to do so.

14    Unfortunately, the growth in the trades has

15    been very stagnant as you know.

16        In July 2014, construction employment in

17    the city made up only 2 percent of all

18    employment, but 5 percent of unemployment

19    compensation claims.  This slow growth

20    really hinders our ability to put special

21    programs in place or to provide funding that

22    might help more people get into these jobs.

23        We are also -- we were also specifically

24    asked about our relationship with the School
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1    District and how we support careers of young

2    people as they graduate.  Philadelphia Works

3    has a standing youth council committee, the

4    Council for College and Career Success

5    supported by our contracted youth works

6    administrators, the Philadelphia Youth

7    Network.

8        The council has subcommittees.  And one

9    of those subcommittees serve as the Perkins

10    Participatory Committee for the secondary

11    level.  As you may know, Perkins funds are

12    the funds that support the career and

13    technical education programs at the School

14    District.  These important programs which

15    give career skills to young people while

16    they do their high school education are

17    increased or decreased based on how well

18    aligned the School District's programs are

19    with the State's high priority occupations.

20        Philadelphia Works provides technical

21    assistance to be certain that those

22    alignments are made so as much funding can

23    be captured as is possible.  We also provide

24    technical assistance throughout the city for
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1    workforce training.  For example, we have a

2    strong partnership with YouthBuild

3    Philadelphia.  Their programming supports

4    both traditional and nontraditional careers

5    for women and men.

6        In addition, the Southeast Regional

7    Workforce Development Partnership and

8    Employer Led Industry Partnership For

9    Advance Manufacturing and Logistics supports

10    youth interns in the summer.  These interns

11    are part of the summer internship program

12    the Philadelphia Youth Network runs each

13    summer for which we provide a good bit of

14    the funding.  Philadelphia Works manages

15    this partnerships and raises funds to

16    support the mission.

17        This year we also have additional grant

18    to offer some year round co-ops to high

19    school students, which we hope will advance

20    students to employment in manufacturing.

21    The industry partnership does more than

22    youth internships.  They engage in promoting

23    employment and manufacturing and actively

24    train workers and recruit from our PA Career
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1    Link System.  Another area of activity that

2    supports placing Philadelphians into new job

3    opportunities is our partnership with the

4    City's Department of Commerce and the

5    Philadelphia Industrial Development

6    Corporation.  When companies come here to

7    the City, Philadelphia Works provides

8    opportunities for them to capture training

9    dollars to train workers to meet the skill

10    levels that they need to be successful in

11    the city.

12        Likewise, we are actively engaged in

13    implementing the First Source Employment

14    Legislation requiring that new entry level

15    jobs created as a result of the City's

16    financial assistance are made available to

17    residents first following the equal

18    opportunity rules and requirements of the PA

19    Career Link System.

20        Philadelphia Works continues to provide

21    opportunities for Philadelphians within the

22    structure of our funding.  We innovated by

23    creating comp packs with employers.  An

24    employer agrees to post jobs on the PA
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1    Career Link System, interview PA Career Link

2    job seekers that meet their requirements and

3    hire those who are qualified.  Some

4    employers provide us with internal

5    assessments so we can better prepare our

6    Career Link job seekers to better meet what

7    they need in the application process.  We

8    have 14 participating employers at this time

9    and the number is growing.

10        Philadelphia Works focuses on

11    understanding the needs and requirements of

12    employers to better prepare job seekers for

13    work.  Solid matches between the employer

14    and the job seeker as a result in a stronger

15    economy for the city and a more stable

16    future for our residents.

17        MS. DOWD-BURTON:  Thank you.  Steve, any

18    questions?

19        MR. BRADLEY:  No.

20        MS. DOWD-BURTON:  Thank you.  Vanessa?

21        MS. FIELDS:  Of course.

22        You talk about what Philadelphia Works

23    is doing regarding the public school system.

24    How has the budget issues impacted on your
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1    ability to make sure this happens?

2        MS. KOPPEL:  So, the Career and

3    Technical Education Programs are a little

4    different than the regular school funding.

5    There are several things that are happening

6    right now.  First of all, as you may know,

7    the Mayor and especially his wife Lisa

8    Nutter captured some special funding for the

9    Career and Technical Education Programs this

10    year to do professional development for all

11    the teachers who teach in Career and

12    Technical Education Program.  That is

13    ongoing.

14        Second of all, the programs are

15    supported by the Perkins funding.  This is

16    national funding that comes through.  And

17    while we went from a high of about

18    $11 million some years ago, we're now at

19    about 7 million -- 6 to 7 million now.

20    That's mostly due to the restrictions of the

21    amount of money coming into the State and

22    not because we are not aligned with what we

23    need to do in order to capture the funds.

24        However, that funding does come.  And
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1    it's both -- we get both equipment grants

2    for the School District and we also by

3    having the programs align with high priority

4    occupations that the Commonwealth

5    determines, we get a per-student rate from

6    the State that helps support Career and

7    Technical Education Students.

8        MS. FIELDS:  Thank you.

9        MS. KOPPEL:  You're welcome.

10        MS. DOWD-BURTON:  Okay.  I want to thank

11    you very much for coming, Meg.  It's

12    important that you be here.  We have two

13    other speakers who will speaking to

14    workforce.

15        MS. KOPPEL:  Oh, wonderful.

16        MS. DOWD-BURTON:  And so, I think it's

17    important that they hear what you're doing

18    with Philadelphia Works and how you're

19    connecting the dots, and that you hear what

20    they have to offer in terms of what their

21    interests are.

22        MS. KOPPEL:  Thank you very much.

23        MS. DOWD-BURTON:  Thank you.

24        Next we have up Ms. Nina Bryan of
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1    Eastwick Neighbors.  Thank you, Ms. Bryan.

2        If you would introduce yourself, please.

3        MS. BRYAN:  Certainly.  Good morning and

4    thank you.  My name is Nina Bryan.  I am a

5    resident of the Eastwick area of

6    Philadelphia for 37 years.  And it's a

7    pleasure to be here.  I'd like to thank you,

8    Ms. Burton for inviting me and letting me

9    present what we have to say from the

10    southwest portion of the city.

11        Let me begin by saying that what I'd

12    like to do is present an overview of some of

13    the initiatives, ideas and economic

14    proposals related to the Eastwick community.

15    I would like to begin with the Philadelphia

16    Airport, the expansion of the Philadelphia

17    Airport that has been thrown about in this

18    room already this morning.

19        And what I'd like to present is that

20    number one, the Philadelphia Airport

21    expansion is one of the largest airport

22    expansions in the history of the United

23    States, I do believe.  It places our

24    community in a unique and somewhat ackward
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1    position.  Unique in that this expansion can

2    be one of the most expansive economic

3    ventures for our city over the next 15 to 20

4    years.  Specifically, the Airport can

5    potentially be one of the largest employers

6    in need of new employees for both skilled

7    workers and laborers.  Ackward in the sense

8    that this expansion will also change the

9    physical environment of the community in

10    terms of increased traffic, pollution and

11    noise.

12        In response to the evident changes in

13    our community and the potential growth of

14    our community, the Eastwick Community

15    Network was formed to serve as a voice of

16    its stakeholders.  Comprised of local

17    residents, the following committees were

18    formed to show how the residents and the

19    City could benefit in response to the

20    Airport expansion.  These committees are

21    Housing and Economic Development,

22    Faith-Based Initiative, Zoning, Community

23    Outreach, Job Development, Arts and Culture

24    and, of course, the Education committee of
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1    which I serve as chair.

2        So here is just some of the highlights

3    of the objectives of two economic proposals

4    that we'd like to present to the panel this

5    morning.  Number one, proposal one is the

6    establishment of a tourism improvement

7    district to benefit Eastwick and the lower

8    southwest communities.  The principal

9    objective of this initiatives are

10    sustainable employment opportunities in

11    areas of tourism, hospitality and customer

12    service.  We'd like to also create new

13    business opportunities, improve and enhance

14    property values, complement Airport

15    expansion efforts and also to generate

16    additional tax revenue for the City.

17        And the second proposal, which is near

18    and dear to my heart because I am a strong

19    supporter of public education, is the

20    perhaps reopening of one of the schools

21    which were closed in the Eastwick area.  And

22    the principal objective there is as listed,

23    reopening of one of the closed schools in

24    the Eastwick community as a trade school to
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1    prepare local students to fill future jobs

2    in the area of carpentry, masonry,

3    electrical and other industrial arts.  These

4    are necessary skills identified by the

5    Airport Expansion Committee in order for job

6    readiness and fulfilment.  We also propose

7    the school includes textile and design in

8    its curriculum for those students seeking

9    careers in this industry.

10        Creation of a manufacturing plant to

11    support the needs of the Airport as well as

12    the City at large.  And will expound on that

13    in a moment.  Revenues produced from the

14    manufacturing plant could be reused to

15    reduce school budget, district budget, with

16    efforts to create endowment funds for the

17    schools.  This is not a novel idea.  It is

18    our hope that one of our schools could be

19    one of the first schools actually endowed in

20    the City of Philadelphia.  Colleges and

21    universities do it.  We feel -- I personally

22    feel if we do it at the primary and

23    secondary level, it's going to prepare these

24    children for better or, you know, increased
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1    success in post-graduate colleges and

2    universities.

3        It is my belief that we must be bold,

4    creative and committed to the overall needs

5    of our community and the City at large.  We

6    must recognize that we must no longer work

7    in silos to truly benefit fro the talents

8    and strengths of all of our resources.

9        Again, I would like to just thank you

10    for this opportunity for presenting these

11    ideas.  We invite you to lend your support

12    and efforts to our community so that these

13    efforts can be realized.  We recognize our

14    community Eastwick as the windows to our

15    nation.  For some visitors, our community is

16    the first glimpse they'll see of America.

17    So therefore, we want to present and show

18    the word at large our best.

19        At this time, I'd be more than happy to

20    address any questions that you have, please.

21        MS. DOWD-BURTON:  Steven?

22        MR. BRADLEY:  So, Eastwick Community

23    Network is not a CDC.  It's just a --

24        MS. BRYAN:  It is not a CDC at this time
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1    you.

2        MR. BRADLEY:  You have plans on making

3    it a CDC --

4        MS. BRYAN:  Oh, absolutely.

5        MR. BRADLEY:  -- so you can apply for

6    grants?

7        MS. BRYAN:  Oh, absolutely.

8        MR. BRADLEY:  Right now you have no

9    funding, correct?

10        MS. BRYAN:  We have no funding.  This is

11    a brand new organization.

12        MR. BRADLEY:  Great, great.  Very

13    ambitious.  Good luck.

14        MS. BRYAN:  Thank you.

15        MR. BRADLEY:  Very good.  You have a

16    great agenda ahead of you.

17        MS. BRYAN:  Oh, yes.

18        MR. BRADLEY:  Much success.

19        MS. BRYAN:  Thank you.

20        MS. DOWD-BURTON:  Thanks, Steve.

21    Vanessa?

22        MS. FIELDS:  Yes.  It is a great plan.

23    It looks great.  Could you tell me

24    specifically, though, how are you going to
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1    go about trying to reopen the school?  You

2    want to reopen it, but specifically what are

3    you specifically doing to reopen the school?

4        MS. BRYAN:  Well, this is the number one

5    step.  We are presenting this idea.  We are

6    hoping that when presented in this format,

7    it will reach the ears of the necessary

8    folks who can help in assisting in that

9    process.

10        For me personally, as part of -- as

11    being part of the Education Chair, I will

12    seek out developers who might be interested

13    in this -- the opening of the school.  It

14    has -- just let me give you an example of

15    some of the efforts we'd like to do which

16    will produce revenue for the City as well as

17    support education in Philadelphia at large.

18        We'd like to produce something as simple

19    as chairs like these chairs, but it will be

20    the names of the different schools.

21    Different colleges and universities in other

22    private schools, when they graduate from the

23    schools, they have chairs with their names

24    on it.  So, I presented it to my children
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1    who are also products of the Philadelphia

2    school system.  I said, would you as an

3    alumni at the high school or school,

4    purchase one of these chairs?  It's very

5    simple but yet it could have long lasting

6    effects on graduates of that schools an

7    former graduates.

8        And for another example in terms of

9    textiles and sewing, the City of

10    Philadelphia right now today every child had

11    on a uniform.  Why can't we produce a plant

12    so we can make our own uniforms?  Who knows,

13    we maybe able to produce uniforms for other

14    cities who are moving along in this trend.

15    So, the economic advantages are -- can be

16    numerous.

17        MS. FIELDS:  So --

18        MS. BRYAN:  Specifically addressing your

19    question if I have not, is that we will seek

20    developers in this -- so that they, too,

21    might buy in to some of the proposals we

22    have presented today.  One of our largest

23    retailers or business owners is looking to

24    expand the market.  So, his market -- so



(215) 504-4622
Strehlow & Associates, Inc.

64

1    therefore, we will have more job

2    opportunities in Eastwick.

3        MS. FIELDS:  So, the school that was

4    closed, was it a Philadelphia public school?

5        MS. BRYAN:  Yes.

6        MS. FIELDS:  Which school was it?

7        MS. BRYAN:  Comm Tech and Pepper.  Those

8    are two of the Philadelphia schools which

9    were closed.  And which, technically, I do

10    believe the Eastwick area is supposed to

11    have two schools and we have one.

12        MS. FIELDS:  I used to live in the area

13    right across the street from Pepper.

14        MS. BRYAN:  Yes.

15        MS. FIELDS:  I know exactly what you're

16    talking about.  I still feel that you didn't

17    answer my question, but, you know, it's a

18    good beginning.

19        MS. BRYAN:  It is --

20        MS. FIELDS:  I commend you on that.

21        MS. BRYAN:  It's in our infancy stage in

22    terms of actually getting that school open.

23    That's our next step.  We have come up with

24    the idea, now we have to strategically plan
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1    how that's going to happen.

2        MS. FIELDS:  Exactly.

3        MS. BRYAN:  And we are looking for --

4    when I said not in silos, we are looking for

5    area businesses to be a part of this

6    initiative.

7        MS. FIELDS:  Okay.

8        MS. DOWD-BURTON:  Well, I think the most

9    important point is the focus on a

10    collaborative strategy.

11        MS. BRYAN:  Absolutely.

12        MS. DOWD-BURTON:  Because it is one that

13    has to be wholistic.  Certainly, the

14    proposal that you've laid out is a

15    self-sustaining kind of model that has

16    some -- some -- it has merit.  And so, is

17    there anyone in particular that you're

18    working with right now in the Commerce

19    Department?

20        MS. BRYAN:  We have a meeting with the

21    Commerce Department coming up our

22    organization.  Also, we have been in

23    conversation with the Airport Expansion

24    Committee.  And they have also signed on
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1    because these necessary skills in terms of

2    masonry, carpentry, they need this.  We want

3    to make sure that our children will be

4    equipped with these skills.  I have heard

5    from other members of the panel who have

6    spoken this morning saying, hey, look, we

7    don't have the skill sets.  We want to be

8    the school to provide these skill sets so

9    that we can fill these jobs.

10        These jobs -- we're building constantly

11    in Philadelphia.  So, we want to make sure

12    that our kids are equipped with the skill

13    sets so we can fill these positions.  And

14    also, these skills are lasting

15    entrepreneural efforts.

16        MS. DOWD-BURTON:  Correct.  Very good.

17    Okay.  Well, listen, thank you so much.

18        MS. BRYAN:  Thank you.

19        MS. DOWD-BURTON:  Anything we can

20    continue to do to support your effort or

21    open doors, we will be happy to do that.  We

22    will look forward to hearing the outcome of

23    your meetings with Commerce and the Airport.

24        MS. BRYAN:  Yes.
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1        MS. DOWD-BURTON:  We do have another

2    speaker with regard to labor coming up.  And

3    I want to acknowledge Glen Bryant for being

4    here in support.  Glen from the University

5    of Pennsylvania.  Thank you very much for

6    all that you do with the Office of Economic

7    Opportunity serving on the Mayor's Advisory

8    Commission on Construction Industry

9    Diversity.  We appreciate it.

10        MS. BRYAN:  Thank you so much.

11        MS. DOWD-BURTON:  Thank you very much

12    Ms. Nina Bryan.

13        And so, we are going to call up now

14    Fermin Morales.  And while he's coming up,

15    we are just going to acknowledge the fact

16    that the City of Philadelphia is third in

17    the country in terms of the volume of

18    construction projects that have been created

19    over this past year.  Third in the country

20    and growing.  Many of you know we've got the

21    $1.2 billion Comcast Building.  We've got

22    the Airport expansion.  All the work being

23    done at the University of Penn, Drexel and

24    Temple, FMC Project, Hotel on the Parkway.
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1    I could go on, but suffice it to say, we

2    need workers who are prepared, ready,

3    willing and able to do the job.  Thanks to

4    all of you.

5        Okay.  Mr. Morales.

6        MR. MORALES:  How you doing?

7        MS. DOWD-BURTON:  Welcome.

8        MR. MORALES:  My name is Fermin Morales.

9    I am a member of the Phair Hiring Coalition.

10    Few of our members are back there, also.

11    They are also part of the Phair Hiring

12    Coalition and Phair Hiring Coalition, City

13    Council Resolution Draft Proposal.

14        As members of the Phair Hiring

15    Coalition, we would like to thank those

16    forces that were able to achieve a

17    40 percent community participation rate in

18    the second phase of the construction of the

19    expansion of St. Christopher's Hospital.

20    This buy no means was a small task.  In

21    being able to secure jobs for area code

22    19140 and adjacent areas, we noted how many

23    jobs that are not government funded lack the

24    participation of Philadelphians when
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1    building projects in their communities are

2    going up.  Whether the Northeast, North

3    Philly or Southwest Philly, these job sites

4    lack community representation.

5        Unlike St. Christopher's Hospital job

6    which is government funded, most

7    construction projects are not.  Therefore,

8    there is no obligation by law to fulfil the

9    needs of the community.  Usually, what you

10    will observe in these construction projects

11    is a prevalence of workers from the

12    Pennsylvania suburbs, New Jersey and even

13    Delaware.

14        Philly residents commonly get the short

15    end of the stick.  There is so much

16    discrimination against Philly residents.  We

17    are the ones who shop, rent, purchase homes

18    and pay real estate taxes in the City and

19    choose to live here.  In such a difficult

20    economy, Philadelphians deserve better than

21    getting discriminated against in their own

22    town.

23        Therefore, we are proposing that the

24    City Hall pass a bill requiring 4 percent of
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1    the hours of construction jobs go to the

2    residents of the project ZIP code and

3    adjacent surrounding areas wherever there is

4    a construction project going up.  This

5    should include 40 percent of the hours of

6    skilled trades and 40 percent of the hours

7    of laborers.  We know this goal is reachable

8    as we've seen it happen at St. Christopher's

9    with a little commitment and effort.

10        We propose that these jobs whether union

11    or nonunion should start and end with trades

12    men and trades women from the site's

13    community.  In other words, the first hired

14    and the last laid off must be from the

15    community.  It is -- if it is a union job,

16    business agents and contractors must be in

17    full cooperation with each other and must be

18    held accountable if these mandates are not

19    enforced.  This can be done by checking the

20    payrolls of every contractor to make sure

21    that they are abiding by the law.

22        It is also important to know that the

23    construction industry in Philadelphia and

24    elsewhere has a history of centophobia
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1    towards women and people of color.

2    Currently, women make up about 1 percent

3    participation in Philadelphia and face a

4    wider array of discriminatory practices.

5    Women make up more than half of

6    Philadelphia's population that is -- thus it

7    is of most importance to make sure that they

8    are better represented in these construction

9    sites and that their numbers be increased

10    significantly for real apprenticeship

11    programs or to expedite this inclusion by

12    giving them tickets to be members in the

13    trades.

14        Construction jobs are good paying jobs

15    that lift individuals and families out of

16    poverty.  Women have been excluded from

17    these jobs for far too long.  We must make

18    every step to remedy this inequity.  The

19    City of Philadelphia now comprises

20    approximately 30 percent European descent

21    with the rest being predominantly African

22    American, Latinos and Asian.  Yet again, the

23    building trades are dominated by European

24    descent males while all other groups of
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1    color are seriously underrepresented.

2    Therefore, with women we must make sure the

3    union apprenticeship programs mirror the

4    diversity, the composition in the City of

5    Philadelphia.

6        These programs been taking apprentices

7    should be 60 percent non-white or above.

8    Not 10 percent or even 20 percent.  This

9    will allow those individuals who have been

10    excluded for decades to be included and help

11    achieve the 40 percent community

12    participation rate.  If we are not achieving

13    this rate, then we must again expedite the

14    community inclusion by issuing tickets to

15    members of the trade.  In doing so, it will

16    lead to a more diverse construction site and

17    help alleviate some of the tensions from

18    different ethnic working class people that

19    are caused because of exclusion.

20        The Phair Hiring Coalition whose members

21    are construction workers, concerned

22    residents of Philadelphia, community

23    activist would like to see a comprehensive

24    and constructive dialogue around these
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1    issues followed by substantive and timely

2    action.  Thank you.

3        MS. DOWD-BURTON:  Thank you very much,

4    Mr. Morales.  Questions, Steve?

5        MR. BRADLEY:  No.

6        MS. DOWD-BURTON:  Vanessa?

7        MS. FIELDS:  I don't have any questions.

8    I just want to commend him.  One hundred

9    percent agree with you and really would like

10    to talk to you in more detail afterwards in

11    terms of what we can probably do to assist

12    with this process and address your concerns.

13        MR. MORALES:  I think it's the concern

14    of how we move this City and how we move

15    human mankind in the right direction and how

16    we really truly talk about being advanced as

17    human beings.  Because I think we lack that

18    still even in 21st century.  So, I'd like to

19    thank you for your time for having me up

20    here.  And I hope there really is a

21    constructive dialogue around this issue.

22        MS. FIELDS:  Yes.

23        MR. MORALES:  Thank you.

24        MS. DOWD-BURTON:  I think what you've
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1    done is sort of put your hand on the pulse

2    of what we've been working to do, and there

3    is still work to be done.  The targets right

4    now are 32 percent minorities participating

5    on construction projects and 7 percent women

6    is journeyman targets.  50 percent of all of

7    apprentice should be minority, and 7 percent

8    of the apprentice should be women.

9        And so, those numbers came out of the

10    Mayor's Advisory Commission on Construction

11    Industry Diversity in 2009.  They are

12    incorporated in the goals that we set in our

13    economic opportunity plans.  And so, working

14    with your organization to sure up a

15    conversation around local goals would be

16    another step in the direction of getting

17    more city residents to work.

18        So, we appreciate your testimony and

19    look forward to talking to you more about

20    that.

21        MR. MORALES:  All right.  Thank you.

22        MS. DOWD-BURTON:  Thank you.  Okay.

23        And our final speaker for today is

24    Nicholas Jann.  I don't think there's anyone
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1    else here to speak today.  Okay.  Very good.

2    Thank you.

3        Nicholas, if you can introduce yourself

4    please.

5        MR. JANN:  My name is Nicholas Jann.

6    I'm an economic analyst within the Office of

7    Economic Opportunity.

8        MS. DOWD-BURTON:  Thank you.  And your

9    testimony.

10        MR. JANN:  Thank you.  As I said, I'm a

11    economic analyst within the Office of

12    Economic Opportunity.  In that office I work

13    directly for William Clark, who is Director

14    of Special Projects.  Today I will be

15    reading Mr. Clark's testimony about the

16    current status of economic opportunity plans

17    otherwise none as EOPs.

18        EOPs represent the various project

19    owners commitment to the growth and

20    participation of minority and women-owned

21    businesses.  As of today, the OEO has

22    managed nearly 640 EOPs.  This number

23    represents EOPs on projects owned by the

24    City of Philadelphia, its quasi-governmental
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1    agencies and private and non profit owners

2    within the city limits of Philadelphia.

3        During Fiscal Year 2014, there were 68

4    unique prime contractors that held a

5    contract with the City.  This is a

6    26 percent increase from Fiscal Year 2013.

7    Of the 68 primes, 3 were minority or

8    women-owned businesses, a 33 percent

9    increase from 2013.  Additionally, 38 unique

10    active minority and women-owned

11    subcontractors worked on City contracts.

12    Last week the City of Philadelphia reached a

13    substantial completion on the Dilworth Park

14    renovation which had been valued at $55

15    million.  This project had a participation

16    goal of 30 to 40 percent for disadvantaged

17    businesses.  To date, documented

18    participation is over 34 percent which

19    represents over $18.7 million.

20        In the spirit of celebrating the

21    progress of this project, I'd like to

22    recognize the minority and women-owned

23    business that participated.  Among the

24    minority owned businesses are Gracie
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1    Painting, JMS Associates, McCrae Electric,

2    River Mechanical and Torrado Construction.

3    The women-owned businesses that were

4    involved were Delta, Envision Consulting,

5    Majek Fire Prevention, PBA, Poverty Ridge,

6    Structural Tone, LLC, Thomas Building, Trey

7    Corp and U.S. Plate and Mirror.

8        This sample of businesses represents the

9    OEO's steadfast commitment to providing

10    opportunities to all minority and

11    women-owned businesses.  We support these

12    firms through the formation of strong

13    economic opportunity plans which we

14    highlight in our annual participation

15    reports.

16        Our next checkpoint is quickly

17    approaching.  It is the annual EOP Report in

18    this report we will assess the status of all

19    EOP projects and the payments made to

20    minority and women-owned businesses during

21    Fiscal Year 2014.  We look to forward to

22    sharing this report and its findings with

23    the Economic Opportunity Review Committee in

24    the coming months.
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1        That concludes my testimony.  And I will

2    be glad to answer any questions.

3        MS. DOWD-BURTON:  Thank you.  Steve?

4        MR. BRADLEY:  Information was very

5    helpful.  Thank you.

6        MS. DOWD-BURTON:  Vanessa.

7        MS. FIELDS:  I don't have any questions

8    because I didn't have the document in front

9    of me.  You were reading kind of quickly.

10        MR. JANN:  Forgive me.  I'm sorry.

11        MS. FIELDS:  I couldn't understand, to

12    be honest with you.

13        MR. JANN:  I apologize.

14        MS. DOWD-BURTON:  Just to summarize,

15    though, they are about 670 economic

16    opportunity plans in the public, private and

17    nonprofit sector.  These are construction

18    projects that have minorities and women in

19    prime as well as subcontractor position.

20    And we will be tracking payments from the

21    primes to subs in an economic opportunity

22    plan report that will be published later

23    this year.

24        Okay.  Thank you very much, Nicholas.
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1    One of the things I'm going to do fairly

2    quickly, first of all, I want to thank

3    everyone for testifying here today.  We

4    certainly appreciate and value your time,

5    your insights, your interests and some of

6    the concerns that you shared.  We will

7    certainly incorporate them in our

8    conversations with members of council and

9    the administration as we move forward.

10        I want to highlight a couple of

11    documents that are ready for distribution.

12    They are either on the table or LaShawnda

13    has distributed them.  One -- and these are

14    events that are coming up fairly quickly.

15    So tomorrow there is a pre-proposal meeting

16    for those individuals who have businesses

17    that monitor minority and female

18    subcontracting participation on projects as

19    well as monitor workforce diversity.

20        There is a renovation of a huge building

21    at 46th and Market Street.  Many of you have

22    heard about it.  It is the new police

23    headquarters.  We will be hiring a

24    consultant who will be providing the



(215) 504-4622
Strehlow & Associates, Inc.

80

1    monitoring services for the Office of

2    Economic Opportunity on that project.  The

3    pre-proposal meeting is tomorrow at ten

4    o'clock at 1515 Arch Street on the 18th

5    floor.  And so, or you can certainly call

6    our office at 267 -- that's my cell phone

7    number.  Sorry.  Call our office at

8    (215)683-2055 for details on that.  That's

9    683-2055.

10        Comcast, we've mentioned their tower

11    that is being built.  They will have an

12    outreach program to talk to contractors and

13    subcontractors about their project.  It's

14    scheduled for September 10 from five to

15    eight o'clock in Comcast Center.  That's at

16    45th floor.  That's 1701 JFK Boulevard.

17    Again, that's September 10 from 5 to 8 in

18    the Comcast Center at 1701 JFK Boulevard.

19    And you can call our office, and we will

20    certainly give you the contact information

21    if you'd like to register for that event on

22    September 10.

23        There is a Meet The Developers Exploring

24    Diversity Program that is scheduled for
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1    September 16 from 5:30 to 7:30 in the

2    African-American Museum at 701 Arch Street.

3    Again, that's Meet The Developers Exploring

4    Diversity on Tuesday, September 16, 5:30 to

5    7:30 at the African-American Museum.

6        And then I guess my final announcement

7    is around the W Element Hotel.  The W

8    Element Hotel has an outreach.  And their

9    program is Tuesday, September 16 from 4:30

10    to 6:30 at the Sheraton Philadelphia Society

11    Hill Hotel.  That's located at 1 Dock

12    Street.  That's the W Element Hotel.  Their

13    program is Tuesday, September 16 from 4:30

14    to 6:30 at the Sheraton Philadelphia Society

15    Hill Hotel.  And you can call our office and

16    get follow-up information if you did not get

17    all of that information.

18        I just want to -- before I go into

19    acknowledgement, extend any closing

20    comments, Steve?

21        Thank you very much.  And Vanessa?

22        MS. FIELDS:  No.

23        MS. DOWD-BURTON:  Okay.  I just want to

24    publicly thank Councilman Wilson Goode for
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1    developing this venue that enables the

2    committee to assess the marketplace in such

3    a public forum.  And I really thank all of

4    City Council for giving us this opportunity.

5    I'd like to acknowledge Mayor Michael Nutter

6    and his leadership and that of the Economic

7    Opportunity Cabinet for their proactive

8    support of our inclusion work strategy.

9    Want to recognize the OEO staff and

10    certainly the OEO officers that around the

11    City who support our goals and achievement

12    every day.  And those who, again, have come

13    out to testify and to provide us with some

14    of their wisdom.

15        I'd also like to give a special

16    acknowledgment to LaShawnda Tompkins who

17    acts as my anchor and has worked very

18    feverishly on the MED Week celebration along

19    with a number of wonderful members of the

20    MED Week Committee.

21        And so, this concludes our meeting for

22    today.  We'll be happy to see you on

23    December 8, 2014.  That's our last meeting

24    of the year.  December 8, ten o'clock here
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1    at City Council Chambers.  Thank you very

2    much and enjoy the first day of school.

3    Kiss a student today.

4                   -  -  -

5        (At this time, the EORC Meeting adjourned

6    at 11:26 a.m.)

7                   -  -  -
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2          C E R T I F I C A T I O N

3

4                I, hereby certify that the

5        proceedings and evidence noted are

6        contained fully and accurately in the

7        stenographic notes taken by me in the

8        foregoing matter, and that this is a

9        correct transcript of the same.

10

11

12        -----------------------------
       ANGELA M. KING, RPR

13        Court Reporter - Notary Public

14

15

16                (The foregoing certification of

17        this transcript does not apply to any

18        reproduction of the same by any means,

19        unless under the direct control and/or

20        supervision of the certifying reporter.)
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